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Far from being a forgotten phase in the distant past, 
Fort St. Joseph is today becoming part of the living 
record of Canadian history. 

Visitors to this island outpost will have the unique 
opportunity to witness an historical archaeological 
"d ig " in progress. This extensive archaeological 
program, which is explained in detail by Parks 
Canadaguides, will provide information forthe inter­
pretation of the fort's past. At the same time it will 
provide valuable information for the future develop­
ment of Fort St. Joseph as a National Historic Park. 

Easy Access 

The 800-acre site of Fort St. Joseph is located on St. 
Joseph's Island, 36 miles east of Sault Ste Marie, 
Ontario. Access to the island is by a new bridge off 
Trans Canada Highway 17. From Richard's Landing, 
the road is marked with directional signs leading to 
the park. 

Fort St. Joseph is open from mid-May to the end 
of October and staff guides are on duty throughout 
the peak summer period to assist visitors in their 
exploration of the ruins. In addition, selected points 
of interest are marked by interpretive signs for those 
wishing to wanderat their leisure. 

Visitors are invited to make use of the picnic facili­
ties available. In addition to the rest rooms and in­
formation office, a temporary trailor unit has been 
adapted as a theatre for the presentation of films 
and illustrated talks to explain the history of the 
sites. A natural area in the vicinity of the ruins will be 
maintained as an integral part of the site. 

A Place in History 
From 1796 to 1812 Fort St. Joseph was the most 
westerly British post in Canada. The interdepend­
ence of military strategy, Indian policy and the fur 
trade on the Upper Great Lakes, following the Ameri­
can revolution, provided the incentive for its estab­
lishment. 

Under the terms of the Treaty of 1783, all territory 
south of the Great Lakes was awarded to the new 
republic of the United States. In the northwest the 
British had to give up Fort Michilimackinac, the 
gateway to the Upper Lakes. Traditionally it had been 
a key trading centre forthe rich fur area to the south 

Archaeological surveyors map blockhouse ruins. 
Les ingénieurs archéologiques dressent une carte des ruines du 
blockhaus. 

and a symbol of authority to the Indian tribes of the 
region. 

Despite the loss of this valuable fur-bearing land 
below the border, the Montreal merchants hoped to 
continue to trade with the Americans. The British 
were also morally and politically obligated to their 
Indian allies who mistrusted American intentions. 
Without a show of strength in the Upper Lakes, 
British influence would have rapidly deteriorated 
and hard won Indian trust and friendship turned to 
hostility. 

Jay's Treaty (1794) set a deadline of two years for 
final British evacuation of all posts in American ter­
ritory and hastened the search for a suitable replace­
ment forthe Michilimackinac site. The eventual 
choice was St. Joseph Island at the eastern entrance 
to the channel linking Lakes Huron and Superior and 
on the direct canoe and shipping route from 
Montreal. 

The site selected for the fort was a small promon­
tory on the extreme southwest tip of the island 
facing the navigation passage (called The Detour) 
and joined to the mainland by a narrow neck of 
marshy land. 

The island had earlier been named Caribou Island 
or The Traverse and may perhaps have been renamed 
St. Joseph after a former British post on the St. 
Joseph River on southern Lake Michigan. 

St. Joseph was also said to have been a name 
given to it by early 17th century Jesuit missionaries. 
A 1670 map marks the name as Anipich, an Ojibwa 
word meaning "place of the hardwood tree." 

In the spring of 1796 a detachment of British 
soldiers established a base camp on St. Joseph 
Island. Two years later Lieutenant George Landmann 
of the Royal Engineers arrived to supervise the con­
struction of a permanent fort. 

By the end of 1803 most of the fortifications were 
complete including the blockhouse, guardhouse 
with "blackholes", stockade, powder magazine and 
one of the redans. Four six-pounder ship-guns pro­
vided the fire power and offered a token defence for 
the newly constructed wharf. 

The blockhouse included space forthe Indian De­
partment and Engineer's stores on the ground floor 
with accommodation for officers and men on the 
second. 

Although the British military had to evacuate 
American territory, Jay's Treaty acceded to the 
Montreal merchants wishes and permitted access to 
the fur trade below the border. This meant that 
Michilimackinac continued to be the merchants 
main trading centre. At the same time they also 
established themselves on St. Joseph, setting up 
huts, stores and wharfs near the protective fort. 

A village settlement sprang up around the fort and 
there was some commercial activity, such as canoe 
building, apart from frontier trade. 

Friendship and Innovation 

Since the interests of merchants and the military 
were closely connected, a camaraderie developed 
between the two. There was some social and family 
life, but the outpost was lonely and isolated and 
desertion was common. 

By its very isolation obtaining supplies became an 

An engineer's map of Fort St. Joseph, 1800. 
Une carte d'ingénieur, fort St-Joseph, 1800. 

unrelenting and continuing challenge, often result­
ing in the inhabitants "making do". 

As the cold bite of winter approached, without any 
word of military supplies arriving, the resourceful 
post Commander, Capt. Charles Roberts was deter­
mined to protect his men from the raw elements. His 
ingenuity is said to have resulted in the design of the 
now famed Mackinaw coats. He commissioned local 
seamstresses and tailors to manufacture the 
Mackinaws from Hudson's Bay Company blankets to 
supplement the threadbare uniforms of his men. 

Once established, Fort St. Joseph enabled the 
British to maintain good relations with the Indians. 
With an Indian department an integral part of the 
post the chiefs reported there to receive the tradi­
tional presents from the Crown and to obtain 
supplies. 

In turn, Indian gifts of corn, fish and maple sugar 
were an important source of provisions for the garri­
son. The goodwill and amity of the Indians were 
further strengthened by the government purchase 
of the island from the Chippawa, in 1798. 

A Rich Dividend 
This triple alliance of soldiers, traders and Indians in 
a common bond of interest paid a rich dividend at 
the outbreak of the War of 1812. An expedition, com­
prising all three, set out from St. Joseph Island and 
captured Michilimackinac from the Americans on 
July 17,1812. 

Accomplished without bloodshed, it was one of 
the boldest strokes of the war and an action of con­
siderable significance since it confirmed the alle­
giance of the Indian tribes. 

Temporarily abandoned when the garrison, Indian 
department and most of the traders transferred to 
Michilimackinac, Fort St. Joseph was burned to the 
ground by American forces in 1814 and was never 
rebuilt. 

Following the warthe British were once again 
ordered to return Michilimackinac to the United 
States and a new frontier post was set up on nearby 
Drummond Island. At about the same time the 
Montreal merchants and fur traders lost their trading 
privileges south of the Great Lakes and they too 
abandoned St. Joseph Island. 

Before the new post on Drummond Island was 
completed a boundary commission ruled that the 
island was within American territory. Thus, in 1928, a 
new post was established at Penetanguishene on 
Georgian Bay. 

The Archaeological Program 

Historical archaeology differs from prehistoric 
archaeology in intent. Prehistoric archaeology is a 
project of discovery, working to uncover artifacts 
and information of prior life with a minimum of direc­
tion. Historical archaeology, on the other hand, often 
has a written history, plans and official records to 
follow and is usually used to prove, refute or supple­
ment an already recorded history. 

The historical archaeological program now under­
way at Fort St. Joseph was begun in summer of 1963. 
In 1963-64 the guardhouse, the old bakery and the 
stores building were located and investigated. In 
addition, a portion of the blockhouse was excavated. 

It is interesting to note that in the archaeologists' 
report from this dig made mention of finding a valu­
able collection of ceramics while tracing the pali­
sade walls and not while excavating building struc­
tures as one might expect. In summarizing his re­
port, J.N. Emerson, University of Toronto Depart-

Each area is marked and precisely detailed to ensure accuracy. 
Chaque endroit est noté et détaillé de façon minutieuse afin 
d'assurer la précision. 

ment of Anthropology suggested that, "discoveries 
are unfortunately where you find them and not 
necessarily where you may be expected to find 
them. This suggests that the potential story lying 
beneath the ground at Fort St. Joseph is just begin­
ning to be tapped." 

Initial archaeological work was confined to the 
immediate area of the fort. An extensive further pro­
gram of archaeology, while continuing to excavate 

within the fort, envisages excavations on a larger 
scale covering a much wider area. This program be­
gan during the 1974 season and is expected to last at 
least until the fall of 1977. 

The 1974 excavation, under the direction of Karlis 
Karklins, centered on the blockhouse, the powder 
magazine, an unidentified structure represented by a 
relatively intact chimney and the west bastion and 
northwest curtain wall of the palisade. As a result, 
information about the size, layout and construction 
of these structures has been obtained. 

The blockhouse has been completely cleared, 
revealing substantial wall foundations and the mas­
sive bases of two interior chimneys. Previously un­
disturbed cultural material was excavated using 
such prosaic hand tools such as trowels, grapefruit 
knives and paint brushes. 

Work at the site during the summer of 1975 in­
cluded the excavation of a second bakery, a lime 
kiln and a complex of traders' huts to the south of 
the fort. During its period of active occupancy, Fort 
St. Joseph was more than simply a military estab­
lishment. It was part of a total functional complex 
that contained a village settlement area and fur trade 
complex as well. The story lying beneath the ground 
is just beginning to be unearthed. The archaelogical 
program will supplement the written record of 
human activity at Fort St. Joseph in the early 1800's. 

Additional Information 

More specific information may be obtained from 
Parks Canada personnel on site or by writing to 
Superintendent, Fort St. Joseph National Historic 
Park, c/o Parks Canada, 132 Second St. East, 
Cornwall, Ontario K6H 5V4. Tel. (613) 933-7951 
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Ontario Fort St-Joseph 
Parc historique national illustration d'un canot "voyageur", par Ed Donald. 

Un objet de recherches 
Le fort St-Joseph ne présente plus aujourd'hui que 
l'aspect d'un ensemble de ruines à l'extrémité sud 
de l'île du même nom. Intimement mêlé à l'histoire 
du pays, il est l'objet de recherches intenses depuis 
plusieurs années. Deux cheminées se détachent sur 
le ciel: probablement les restes de maisons ayant 
abrité des trafiquants de fourrures. Une exploration à 
pied permet de découvrir à fleur de terre les vestiges 
des fondations de plusieurs édifices et à hauteur 
d'homme, des murailles déchiquetées. Toutes les 
constructions furent incendiées et mises à sac en 
1814, par les Américains, juste à la fin des hostilités 
qui avaient débuté en 1812. 

De Michilimackinac à l'île St-Joseph 
Le fort St-Joseph naquit à la suite de deux coups de 
clairon de l'histoire militaire. Le premier, en 1760, 
signalait la défaite de la Nouvelle-France. En 1763, le 
traité de Paris sanctionnait l'appartenance aux 
Britanniques de toutes les terres colonisées par les 
Français en Amérique du Nord. Ainsi le fort Michili­
mackinac, important poste de traite de fourrures 
français, situé à l'extrémité nord de la pointe formée 
par la rencontre des lacs Michigan et Huron, deve­
nait la propriété des Britanniques. Et les activités 
commerciales où les Indiens jouaient le rôle impor­
tant de fournisseurs, poursuivirent leur marche. 

Second coup de clairon: les immigrants britan­
niques du sud réclament leur indépendance de la 
mère-patrie et la gagnent. En 1783, le traité de 
Versailles divise en deux parts le continent nord-
américain britannique. Les États-Unis prennent nais­
sance et le Canada de nouveau après vingt ans fait 
face à un autre destin. Une frontière est tracée qui 
place Michilimackinac sous la dépendance 
américaine. 

Il fallait quand même poursuivre le commerce des 
fourrures. L'île St-Joseph, située non loin de Sault-
Ste-Marie, au nord-est par rapport à Michilimackinac 
(aujourd'hui Mackinaw City dans l'état du Michigan), 
juste à la sortie du détroit reliant le lac Supérieur au 
lac Huron, parut aux Britanniques du nord comme 
une situation de repli valable pour l'installation éven­
tuelle d'un poste de traite. 

Le traité de Jay 
Mais les habitudes ne se changent pas si vite et les 
frontières tracées sur papier ne sont pas nécessaire­
ment respectées tout de suite. Les Américains hési­
taient à rendre aux Loyalistes des terres ou des 
points stratégiques qui leur convenaient et de même 
les Loyalistes, appuyés par les intérêts des mar­
chands du nord, ne pouvaient facilement renoncer à 
Michilimackinac, dont la situation était plus avanta­
geuse. C'était depuis longtemps le lieu de rendez-
vous favori des trafiquants de fourrures et des 
Indiens, le poste de traite majeur "vers les pays du 
nord". Pour régler le conflit, il fallut un autre traité, 
celui de Jay, entre la Grande-Bretagne et les États-
Unis, traité signé en 1794, où les Britanniques 
s'engageaient à rendre pour l'été 1796 les posses­
sions qu'il gardaient encore par-delà la frontière. 

C'est alors que le fort St-Joseph prit forme. De­
puis les débuts de la colonisation, les Européens 

Le blockhaus et la poudrière. 
The blockhouse and powder magazine. 

sentaient le besoin de s'entourer de fortifications 
pour se protéger des indigènes dont ils en­
vahissaient le territoire avec le succès que l'on sait. 
Maintenant, une autre raison jouait dans l'édification 
du fort: le voisin américain, si proche qu'il fût par 
ses origines, ne serait pas toujours nécessairement 
paisible et la frontière contournait justement la 
pointe de l'île où s'établissait le nouveau poste de 
traite. D'ailleurs, les intentions proprement belli­
queuses n'étaient probablement pas absolument 
absentes. Des soldats britanniques, une milice cana­
dienne et des Indiens, partirent un jour de 1812 du 
fort St-Joseph pour aller reprendre Michilimackinac 
aux Américains. Ainsi s'explique le fait que le fort 
St-Joseph fut détruit en 1814. L'ennemi se 
vengeait. 

Il semble que les soldats dépêchés pour occuper 
continuellement le fort, s'y soient ennuyés. Les 
activités commerciales décroissaient pendant la 
saison froide. Anecdote intéressante: un certain 
James M. Cawdell y fut exilé en 1811 parce qu'il 
avait écrit quelques paroles méchantes à l'endroit de 
Gore, lieutenant-gouverneur du Haut-Canada. Il avait 
dû quitter York (l'actuelle Toronto) et dans sa colère, 
il compara l'endroit à la Sibérie. 

On raconte encore que le "machinaw" (ou cana­
dienne), ce manteau chaud si bien adapté à notre 
climat, y fut porté pour la première fois. Il n'est pas 
besoin d'être savant pour voir que l'origine de ce mot 
vient tout droit de Michilimackinac. 

Chose certaine, le gouvernement du Haut-
Canada établit au fort St-Joseph les quartiers de son 
"British Indian Department". Grâce à des dons et à 
des échanges de paroles amicales, on espérait 
garder la fidélité des Indiens à la Grande-Bretagne et 
les détourner des États-Unis. 

Le but des chercheurs sur les lieux 

On peut voir que le fort St-Joseph est lié aux débuts 
de la colonisation britannique au Canada et c'est 
pourquoi, depuis plusieurs années, le lieu est l'objet 
de recherches. Le visiteur qui s'y aventure l'été verra 
à l'oeuvre toute une équipe d'archéologues histo­
riques. Le but de leurs fouilles est de mettre à jour, 
à partir des objets trouvés, plus de détails sur la vie 
menée sur les lieux depuis l'arrivée de l'homme 
blanc. 

Laissées à l'abandon pendant un siècle et demi, 
les ruines du fort captivent l'attention de chercheurs 
depuis plus de dix ans. En 1963 et 1964, des archéo­
logues, sous la direction du ministère des Affaires 
indiennes et du Nord, investiguèrent l'espace où se 
trouvait le fort proprement dit. Un grand nombre 
d'objets furent recueillis, chacun racontant à sa 
manière sa propre histoire. Depuis 1974, les recher­
ches s'étendent aux environs du fort afin que l'on 
puisse comprendre tout l'ensemble et le programme 
prévoit des fouilles jusqu'en 1977. 

En 1974, les excavations se centrèrent sur le 
blockhaus, la poudrière, le bastion ouest, le mur 
nord-ouest de la palissade, une cheminée relative­
ment intacte reliée à une structure qu'on n'a pu 
identifier avec certitude, mais qui aurait pu servir 
d'abri aux marchands de pelleteries. Mentionnons 
quelques-uns des objets trouvés: des clous de fer, 
d'autres en cuivre, une longue penture de métal, 
des fragments de poterie, des éclats de verre prove-

Vue aérienne du site du fort St-Joseph. 
An aerial view of the Fort St. Joseph site. 

nant de fenêtres, de bouteilles ou de verres à boire, 
des pièces de monnaie, des ustensiles de cuisine, 
des balles de mousquet, des canifs, des boutons, 
etc. 

En 1975, on examina les restes de la boulan­
gerie et des maisons des trafiquants de four­
rures. Ces dernières pourraient en révéler beaucoup 
sur la vie quotidienne de leurs habitants, car il 
semble que le sol où elles se dressaient, n'ait jamais 
encore été fouillé et l'on s'attend à des trouvailles 
intéressantes. 

Des mesures précises sont relevées à chacune des fouilles. 
Precise measurements are made at each " d i g " . 

On note également la présence dans le sol d'une 
dépression qui servait de four pour fabriquer du 
mortier. On ignore encore d'où provenait la chaux 
nécessaire à cette fabrication. 

Les espoirs des chercheurs 

Si de pareilles recherches, avec ce qu'elles com­
portent d'ardu et de long, peuvent à première vue 
paraître futiles, il ne faudrait pourtant pas oublier 
qu'un seul objet trouvé dans l'une de ces tranchées 
soigneusement ouvertes, peut éclairer l'ensemble 
de l'histoire du pays, pas seulement celle du fort 
St-Joseph. C'est pourquoi on poursuit patiemment 
les travaux. 

L'avenir du lieu historique 

Y aura-t-il reconstruction à la suite du rétablisse­
ment des faits rendu possible par ces fouilles? On 
l'ignore encore. Pendant l'été, des guides sont à la 
disposition des visiteurs afin de leur indiquer à quoi 
correspondent ces ruines en autant qu'ils-le 
sachent. Il se peut que le lieu reste tel quel dans 
toute son authenticité et que certains des objets 
trouvés soient exposés pour que l'on ait une meil­
leure idée de la vie quotidienne menée au fort St-
Joseph. Ce lieu historique national n'en est encore 
qu'au stage de la planification. 
NOTE: Des tables de pique-nique et des salles de 
toilette sont à la disposition des visiteurs. Pour 
plus de renseignements, on peut s'adresser à: 
Surintendant, Fort St-Joseph Parc historique 
national, a/s Parcs Canada, 132, 2e rue est, Cornwall 
(Ontario), K6H 5V4. Tél. (613) 933-7951. 
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Un couteau à écorcher est mis à découvert par un archéologue. 
A skinning knife is delicately uncovered by archaeologist. 

La vie au fort 
Pendant plusieurs années, soldats, trappeurs, cou­
reurs de bois, Indiens et trafiquants se côtoyaient 
sur les lieux, certains y demeurant toute l'année, la 
plupart ne s'y arrêtant que par affaire. On venait 
d'aussi loin que Montréal pour acquérir les fourrures 
déjà achetées par des marchands qui parcouraient 
l'arrière-pays, ou recueillies par des chasseurs 
désireux d'en tirer profit. L'Europe appréciait beau­
coup les fourrures d'Amérique. 


